Mary Tutton

A welcoming place to meet with friends, eat, drink
and stay overnight. This was the Nite Cap Inn.
Through changes in name and ownership it has
remained true to its original role. Most of the older
buildings in downtown Palmyra have seen numerous
transformations: from house to museum, from grocery
to hardware store, from dancehall to parking lot.
Through it all, the Nite Cap has always been an inn.

As with many other properties in town the
original owner was David Powers. He and his wife,
Eliza, bought a 40 acre parcel in 1842 from the US.
government. Being a visionary, he recruited John Fish
to survey the “village” in 1843. Then he proceeded to
involve himself with the new railway that was being
built so as to insure that it came through his town.
The hope was that the railroad would make boom
towns of the villages it passed through.

In a history of the Milwaukee & Mississippi (or
the “M&M” and, now, the Milwaukee & Southern)
the authors recount that the rail did not take a direct
route from Waukesha to Madison but rather “followed
a trail of money...being routed through locations
where either villages or even private citizens offered
funding or land. Hence, the M&M took a pastoral run
through the kettle moraine country via Genessee
Depot, North Prairie, Fagle, and Palmyra before
reaching open country into Whitewater.” Without
doubt David Powers’ influence was important in
getting the train through Palmyra. When tracks were
laid through the village in 1852 everything was in
readiness for them. John Fish had laid out the lot lines
to accommodate the railroad.

Besides being an exciting innovation, the railroad
was a great boon to businesses, farmers, and
individuals in this area, bringing in and carrying out
goods and people.Many of the handsome structures of
the late 1880’ that are to be found along the track owe
their appearance to the fine cream-colored brick that
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was shipped out of Milwaukee.. The Nite Cap Inn is
probably one of them.

From here on we will forget the rest of Powers’
40 acres and concentrate on that part of it, the triangle
of land on the north side of the tracks that was platted
out as Out Lots 5 & 19. David Powers and his brother,
Samuel, and their wives sold this land to Henry and
Lovinia Hayes in 1846. They , in turn, sold it to
Zebine and Betsy Willson and Peter and Lydia Turner.
The latter two couples sold a strip of the south side of
this lot to the Milwaukee & Mississippt Rail Road for
$175.
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Reich’s Hotel with the cupola on top.

The land was sold in 1857 to George and
Elizabeth French who immediately took out a
mortgage for $500, borrowed from the sellers. It can
safely be assumed that the mortgage was used to build
what is now the Nite Cap Inn. Whether it was first
built of wood and later, during more prosperous times,
covered in brick as so often happed in those days, or
built with the brick we see today, is not known.
Palmyra incorporated and became a village in 1866.

In 1871 the inn was sold to John and Caroline
Messerschmidt. They took out a mortgage for $1000,
made improvements, and called their new business
“The Commercial House.”

The property passed through a few hands before
it was sold by Lewis and Emily Nelson in 1892 to
Gilbert and Ella Nelson for $3500. Then, in 1898,







